1990

In the Estate of Herbert Lee Jones : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Pursuant to Rule 3(a) of the Rules of the Utah Supreme Court the final order of the Utah District Court is appealable and jurisdiction is conferred upon the Utah Supreme Court pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 78-2-2(j) (1953 as amended).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

A. Does the Utah District Court have the authority and/or power to invalidate a California Court order and judgment with regard to California State real property?

B. Does the Utah District Court have jurisdiction over real property located in the State of California in probate proceedings?

C. Where a conflict of probate laws exists between the deceased's state of domicile and the state where the deceased owns real property, which law takes precedence?

D. Did the Utah District Court abuse its discretion by ordering the personal representative of the deceased's estate to reobtain and redistribute property already distributed pursuant to an order and judgment of the California Superior Court?

E. Is the judgment of the California Superior Court res judicata with regard to the issue of California real property and therefore entitled to full faith and credit by the Utah courts.

F. Should the personal representative be required to file a bond for property not includeable in the Utah estate of the deceased and already distributed pursuant to a current court order?

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The order of the District Court below was made as a matter of law and therefore the Supreme Court is not required to accept the conclusions of the District Court but shall review the questions of law independently. Avila v. Winn, 794 P.2d 20 (Utah 1990); Henretty v. Manti City Corp., 791 P.2d 506 (Utah 1990).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES

There are no Utah statutes determinative of the issues upon appeal before the Court and this appears to be a matter of first impression in the State.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case.

This is an appeal from a final order of the Third Judicial District Court, for the District of Utah, the Honorable James S. Sawaya presiding, wherein the Court found as a matter of law a prior judgment of a California Superior Court "wholly invalid" with regard to California real property and ordered said property redistributed according to Utah Law

and further ordered the Personal Representative to post bond in an amount equal to one-half of the value of said California real property.

B. Course of Proceedings and Disposition of the Case Below.

At trial held before the Third District Court in February, 1986, the will of the deceased was upheld and his estate passed to Linda Anglesey. Said judgment was appealed by Appellee Robert Lee Jones (hereinafter "Jones") who had been disinherited and reversed on the issue of his status as a pretermitted child and remanded for further proceedings before the District Court.

Subsequent to the above-referenced trial, ancillary proceedings were brought in the Superior Court of California regarding California real property owned by the deceased. The California court held that pursuant to California law, Jones was disinherited and distributed said real property to Linda Anglesey.

In compliance with the decision of the Utah Court of Appeals, Personal Representative Linda Anglesey prepared a Final Accounting awarding one-half (1/2) of all personal property of the deceased as well as one-half (1/2) of all real property located in the State of Utah to Jones. The California real property, previously distributed by the California Superior Court, was not included in said Final

Accounting. Personal Representative Linda Anglesey further petitioned the Court to close the estate.

Jones objected to the Final Accounting and Petition to Close the Estate and Counter-petitioned that the Personal Representative be removed or in the alternative that a personal representative's bond be required. Said Counter-Petition was objected to by the estate and by Personal Representative Linda Anglesey.

Third District Court Judge James S. Sawaya, upon hearing, held that as a matter of law the judgment of the California Superior Court was "wholly invalid", that Jones was entitled to one-half (1/2) of the California real property, and that the Personal Representative was required to post a bond for one-half (1/2) of the estate. This is in appeal by the estate, by and through Personal Representative Linda Anglesey, of said final order.

C. Statement of Facts.

1. On May 1, 1985, Herbert Lee Jones (hereinafter "the deceased") executed a Last Will and Testament prior to his death on July 5, 1985.

2. Said written will named Petitioner Linda M. (Cameron) Anglesey "to be Executor [Sic] and sole beneficiary to my Estate".

3. Petitioner Linda M. (Cameron) Anglesey, Testator's daughter (hereinafter "Linda Anglesey" or "the Personal

Representative") filed a Petition for Formal Probate subsequent thereto on July 19, 1985 to which an Objection was filed by Robert Lee Jones, (hereinafter "Jones") Testator's son, claiming that the Testator lacked testamentary capacity, that Linda Anglesey had exerted undue influence over the Testator and that Jones was a pretermitted child pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 78-2-302(1)(a).

4. Trial was held before the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson of the Third District Court on February 10, 1986. After full presentation of the evidence, the court found that the Testator had the capacity to execute a will in May, 1985; that he was not unduly influenced on said date; that the entire will was completed May 1, 1985; and that the language of the will was sufficient to show that the Testator intended to disinherit his son and therefore Robert Lee Jones was not a pretermitted child pursuant to Utah law. (R.at 110-110).

5. On April 15, 1986 the Court entered the Formal Probate of Will and Appointment of Personal Representative of Linda Anglesey. (R. at 114-115).

6. Thereafter, an ancillary proceeding was filed by the Personal Representative Linda Anglesey in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles for the distribution of the deceased's real property located in the State of California. (R. at 554-561).

7. Jones was provided notice of said ancillary proceeding, and all proceedings in conjunction thereto. (R. at

554-561).

8. A hearing upon said ancillary proceeding was held November 7, 1987 before California Superior Court Judge J. Kimball Walker wherein the Court found that the decedent intended to omit his son Robert Lee Jones from his Will and that pursuant to California law, the entirety of the California real property in the estate would be distributed to Linda Anglesey. (R. at 530-538, 448-454). Said Decree was not appealed nor did Jones appear at any of said proceedings. (R. at 549, 554 - 561).

9. The judgment of the above-referenced Utah District Court decision, however, was appealed by Jones, and the Utah Court of Appeals, in a written opinion, ruled that all aspects of the lower court's decision would be affirmed with the exception of the pretermitted child issue. The Court of Appeals found that Jones was pretermitted child pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 75-2-302 (1)(a) and remanded the case for entry of judgment consistent with such a finding. No costs were awarded. Estate of Jones v. Jones, 759 P.2d 345 (Utah App. 1988).

10. Personal Representative Linda Anglesey thereafter submitted a Petition for Entry of Order and Decree in Accordance with Decision of Utah Court of Appeals and Petition for Approval of Final Settlement, Discharge of Personal Representative and Closing the Administration of the Estate as well as a Summary of Account for all real property of the

decedent's estate located in the State of Utah and all personal property of the decedent's estate wheresoever situated. (R. at 416-420).

11. All real property of the decedent located in the State of California has been distributed in accordance with the ancillary proceeding filed in that state and the court decree therefrom and was not included in said Summary of Account. (R. at 421-422).

12. Jones objected to the Personal Representative's Petition and counter-petitioned the court for an order removing Linda Anglesey as Personal Representative of the deceased's estate, appointing Robert Lee Jones as Personal Representative or in the alternative requiring that Personal Representative Linda Anglesey file a bond in the amount of one-half (1/2) the value of the estate. (R. at 461-471).

13. Personal Representative Linda Anglesey objected to Robert Lee Jones' Counter-Petition on the grounds that the Utah estate had nothing to distribute after the payment of debts and therefore a bond was unnecessary. (R. at 480-485).

14. Judge Kenneth Rigtrup of the Third District Court ordered that the Personal Representative be temporarily restrained from further transferring or disposing of the estate property pending resolution of the matter. (R. at 473-476).

15. On January 16, 1990 hearing on the above-referenced petitions was held before the Honorable James S. Sawaya of the

Third District Court. Without discussing any of the issues of fact, the Court ruled as a matter of law that the California judgment was wholly invalid, that the California real property was includeable in the Utah estate, that each distributee was entitled to one-half of such, and that a bond should be filed by Personal Representative Linda Anglesey for one-half (1/2) of said estate. (R. at 550 - 552).

16. The estate of the deceased Herbert Lee Jones, by and through its Personal Representative Linda Anglesey, appealed the order of the District as inconsistent with the previously entered order and judgment of the California Court. (R. at 562).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The courts have been nearly unanimous in upholding the principles set forth by the U.S. Supreme Court in 1900 that a foreign court is without subject matter jurisdiction to affect the title of real property located outside its territorial limits. This has been especially true in cases involving the probate of a will where real property is left in a state other than the domicile of the deceased, and a conflict of laws exists between the states regarding said probate estate. In such cases the courts have uniformly held that the law and judgment of the situs state controls.

In some instances, foreign state courts have attempted to use their personal jurisdiction over the parties to avoid the

above principle, or argued that the first judgment entered must be granted "full faith and credit" regardless of the location of the real property. Such attempts and arguments however have been unsuccessful and the courts have refused to make exceptions to said principles.

Utah, therefore, must guard its own sovereignty and not throw away its exclusive jurisdiction over real property located in Utah by adopting law to the contrary regarding foreign situated real property. This is particularly important where Utah can only enforce such a law where it has personal jurisdiction over the necessary parties.

Finally, the order of the court below requiring a personal representatives bond is unnecessary and inappropriate as there is no property within the Utah estate of the deceased, the California property is not includeable therein, and attempting to coerce the return of property already distributed by the California courts by means of personal jurisdiction over the distributee is contrary to common law and an inappropriate exercise of juridical authority.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE DISTRICT COURT MAY NOT INVALIDATE THE JUDGMENT OF A CALIFORNIA COURT REGARDING CALIFORNIA REAL PROPERTY

The United States Supreme Court referred to the following as a "well-defined and elementary legal principle".

It is a doctrine firmly established that the law of a state in which land is situated controls and governs its transmission by will or its passage in case of intestacy. Clarke v. Clarke 178 U.S. 186, 190, 20 S.Ct 873, 44 L.Ed. 1028 (1900). (String cite omitted).

Such black letter law has been long established regarding real property as devised by will. The Restatement 2d of Conflicts provides as follows:

Section 240. Construction of a Will Devising Land.

1. A will insofar as it devises an interest in land is construed in accordance with the rules of construction of the state designated for this purpose in the will.

2. In the absence of such a designation, the will is construed in accordance with the rules of construction that would be applied by the courts of the situs.

Section 239. Validity and Effect of Will of Land.

1. Whether a will transfers an interest in land and the nature of the interest transferred are determined by the law that would be applied by the courts of the situs.

2. These courts would usually apply their own local law in determining such questions.

The policy behind the above principles is obvious. States, which so jealously guard their sovereignty, must be permitted to control the disposition of real property within their borders.

A. The U.S. Supreme Court Case of Clarke v. Clarke is the Cornerstone Case Involving the Subject Conflict of Laws Issue.

Although decided in 1900, the Clarke case Supra has never been reversed nor modified. In Clarke a conflict of laws existed between the state of South Carolina where the deceased was domiciled and Connecticut where the deceased owned real property at the time of her death. The Supreme Court of Errors of Connecticut had held that, while the disposition of personal property might be governed by the law of the domicile, real estate within Connecticut was controlled by the law of Connecticut.

The appellant in Clarke argued unsuccessfully that a conflicting decision of a South Carolina Court pre-dated that of the Connecticut Courts and therefore the decree of the South Carolina court construing the will, and not Connecticut's own laws of construction, should determine the rights of the parties as to Connecticut real estate.

The United States Supreme Court concluded, however, that:

[t]his is but to contend that what cannot be done directly can be accomplished by indirection, and that the fundamental principle which gives to a sovereignty an exclusive jurisdiction over the land within its borders is in legal effect dependent upon the nonexistence of a decree of a court of another sovereignty determining the status of such land. Manifestly, however, an authority cannot be said to be exclusive, or even to exist at all, where its exercise may be frustrated at any time. Id at 1992.

In the case at bar, Appellee Jones contends that Utah has granted itself jurisdiction over all real property wheresoever situated by virtue of Utah Code Ann. Section 75-1-201(33) and urged the District Court to use its personal jurisdiction over Personal Representative Anglesey to force her to reobtain possession of the California real property for the estate. Not surprisingly such is only possible because Linda Anglesey is also sole devisee of said real property. Such a situation, however, was foreseen by the Court in Clarke which reasoned as follows:

If, however, by the law as enforced in Connecticut, land in Connecticut owned by Mrs. Clarke at her decease was real estate for all purposes, despite the provisions contained in her will, that land was a subject matter not directly amendable to the jurisdiction of the Courts of another state, however, much those courts might indirectly affect and operate upon it in controversies where the court, by reason of its jurisdiction over persons and the nature of the controversy, might coerce the execution of a conveyance of or other instrument encumbering such land. Id. at 193.

The situation feared by the U.S. Supreme Court has actually occurred in the present case. The District has ordered a redistribution of the California real property and intends to enforce said order by requiring the Personal Representative to post a bond to insure such redistribution. The Court in Clarke, however affirmed the decision of the Connecticut Supreme Court of Errors specifically holding that the courts of South Carolina had no subject matter

jurisdiction over the Connecticut real property. Id. at 195 (string cite omitted).

Although the Utah Courts do not appear to have addressed these issues before, the above principles have been followed and upheld by a number of the other courts. Indeed, the Wyoming Supreme Court has stated that, "[t]he cases on the subject are numerous and so nearly unanimous that it would be useless to attempt to discuss them all". In Re Ray's Estate, 287 P.2d 629, 635 (Wyo. 1955). The Wyoming Court then went on to state that "(they) regard it then as settled law that the devolution of real property in this state and the effect of the decedent's will must be determined by the laws of this state". Id.

B. A Foreign Court has no Jurisdiction Over Property Not Found Within its Territorial Limits.

The Courts in Clarke supra and the cases that followed have uniformly centered on the question of subject matter jurisdiction in denying foreign courts the right to adjudicate the disposition of foreign real property. The case of Durfee v. Duke, 375 U.S. 106, 107-108, 845 S.Ct. 242, 243 (1963) involves a dispute over bottomland on the Missouri River. Because the river is also the boundary between the states of Nebraska and Missouri an issue on appeal dealt with jurisdiction. Justice Stewart of the U.S. Supreme Court began his opinion with the basic undisputed premise that "[t]he Nebraska court had jurisdiction over the subject matter of the

controversy only if the land in question was in Nebraska".

In the case of Welch v. Trustees of Robert A. Welch Foundation, 465 S.W.2d 195, 198 (Tex.App. 1971) involving the courts of two (2) states interpreting the will of the deceased, the Texas Court of Appeals began by validating the principles set forth in Clarke and then went on to discuss the effect of a prior ruling from another state regarding Texas real property from an earlier case decided by the Texas Supreme Court:

The mere fact that the courts of Ohio happen to have acted first in the matter is no more persuasive to us than the converse situation would be to the Ohio courts . . . Courts of a state which is not the situs of the land involved in a questioned devise, or devise in trust, are, generally speaking, without right to apply a law different from that of the situs, and their judgments assuming such a right are not protected by the "Full Faith and Credit" clause of the Federal Constitution, Art. 4, Section 1. Toledo Society for Crippled Children v. Hickok, 152 Tex. 758, 261 S.W.2d 692 (1953).

This result is not surprising as the full faith and credit doctrine requires a foreign court to have subject matter jurisdiction, Durfee v. Duke Supra at 111, and such jurisdiction is lacking with regard to real property outside of a foreign court's territorial limits.

One of the most recent cases affirming the principles in Clarke is that of Hayes v. Gulf Oil Corp., 821 F.2d 285 (5th Cir. 1987). In Hayes, the Fifth Circuit Federal Court was forced to examine whether a Federal District Court could exercise subject matter jurisdiction over real property

situated outside of its territorial boundaries by virtue of its diversity jurisdiction over the parties. The "local action rule" discussed by the Court is similar to the conflicts issues above in that it:

" . . . prevents courts unfamiliar with local property rights and laws from interfering with title to real property which must be recorded under a unitary set of rules to keep it free of conflicting encumbrances. These local rules ensure that real property actions will be tried in a convenient forum and that orderly notice to all interested parties - through Colorado land title records - will be facilitated." Id. at 290

In denying the Federal District Court's claim of jurisdiction, the Fifth Circuit stated as follows: "In short, overwhelming precedent, including cases from this Circuit, which hold that a court sitting in one state cannot adjudicate title to land situated in a different state, and numerous salutary reasons for continuing the local action rule to determine subject matter jurisdiction, compel reversal of the district court's judgment." Id.

In the matter before this Court, the California Superior Court has already demonstrated its unwillingness to allow Utah courts jurisdiction over California real property. Even though, at the time the California ancillary proceeding was initiated, a Utah Third District Court Decision awarding all property of the subject estate to Linda Anglesey and disinheriting Jones had been entered, the California Superior Court refused to grant the Utah judgment full faith and credit. A full evidentiary hearing was held by the California

Court, despite the fact that no opposition to the claims of Linda Anglesey had been filed, on the issues of the sufficiency of the will of the deceased and the effect of the California pretermitted child statute.

It is clear from Clarke and its progeny, that any dispute Jones may have with the distribution of the estate's California real property, or the judgment of the California courts, cannot be bootstrapped into the Utah probate proceeding, but must be directed to the courts with the exclusive subject matter jurisdiction over said property.

POINT II

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