1990

Jones v. : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Utah Court of Appeals has held that Robert Lee Jones is a pretermitted heir. As a pretermitted heir, Robert Lee Jones is entitled to his intestate share of the Decedent's estate. Robert Lee Jones' intestate share of the Estate consists of one-half of all of the Decedent's real and personal property, wherever situated, including any real or personal property located in the State of California.

The decision of the Utah Court of Appeals is binding on the parties, including the Personal Representative, Linda Anglesey. The Decree of the California court that awarded all of the Decedent's real property located in the State of California to Linda Anglesey is invalid. It is not res

judicata, is not binding on the parties, and is not entitled to full faith and credit by the Utah courts. Because Robert Lee Jones' interest in the Estate exceeds Five Thousand Dollars, the Personal Representative should be required to post a bond.

ARGUMENT

I.

UTAH COURTS HAVE JURISDICTION OVER ALL A DOMICILIARY DECEDENT'S REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY.

The decision of the Utah Court of Appeals is res judicata as to the pretermitted heir issue. A judgment is res judicata as to the parties thereto and the issues therein if the judgment was final, and was entered on the merits, without fraud, by a court of competent jurisdiction. See Madsen v. Borthick, 769 P.2d 245, 247 (Utah 1988). There has been no claim that the judgment of the Utah Court of Appeals, in which it was held that Robert Lee Jones was a pretermitted heir, was fraudulently obtained. There is also no contention that the judgment is not final or was not entered on the merits. The Utah courts had both subject matter jurisdiction and personal jurisdiction. The probate division of the lower court followed the decision of the Utah Court of Appeals, as it was bound to do, when it ordered one-half of all the Decedent's property to be distributed to Robert Lee Jones.

A. The Utah Uniform Probate Code
Confers Subject Matter and
Personal Jurisdiction on the Utah
Courts.

The State of Utah adopted the Uniform Probate Code (with modifications) effective July 1, 1977. Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-101 et. seq. (1978 & Supp. 1991) The Utah Uniform Probate Code applies to the estates of decedents who were domiciled in the State of Utah at the time of death. Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-301(1)(a) (Supp. 1991). Any district court of the State of Utah has jurisdiction over all subject matter relating to the "estates of decedents, including construction of wills and determination of heirs and successors of decedents" Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-302(1)(a) (Supp. 1991).

Linda Anglesey repeatedly argues in her brief to this Court that there is authority, which she terms "black letter law," holding that subject matter jurisdiction over the disposition of real property is always vested in the court sitting in the jurisdiction in which the real property is located. She fails, however, to cite even one Utah case which has followed this purported "black letter law." Additionally, she has failed to cite any cases decided under the Uniform Probate Code. In point of fact, she apparently believes that the Utah Uniform Probate Code has any application to this matter, since she advised this Court in her brief that "[t]here

are no Utah statutes determinative of the issues upon appeal before the Court" (Appellant's brief, at 2.)

Even the most widely followed common law rules have no value as precedent in jurisdictions that have codified an alternate rule. The common law has no application in Utah if it is inconsistent with a Utah statute. Utah Code Ann. § 68-3-1 (Supp. 1991). Section 75-1-201(11) of the Utah Uniform Probate Code defines "estate" as "the property of the decedent." Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-201(11) (Supp. 1991). The term "property" "includes both real and personal property or any interest therein and means anything that may be the subject of ownership." Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-201(33) (Supp. 1991).

By adopting the Utah Uniform Probate Code, the Utah Legislature has thus given district courts of Utah subject matter jurisdiction over all of a decedent's estate, including all real and personal property, if the decedent was domiciled in the State of Utah at the time of death. Herbert Lee Jones was domiciled in Utah at the time of his death. Since the filing of Linda Anglesey's original Petition, the Utah courts have had subject matter jurisdiction over all of the property that belonged to Herbert Lee Jones at the time of his death, both real and personal, regardless of where located.

In addition to having subject matter jurisdiction over all of the Decedent's real and personal property, the Utah

courts also have personal jurisdiction over the Personal Representative, Linda Anglesey. The Utah Uniform Probate Code provides that "by submitting . . . a petition for formal probate . . . petitioner subject himself to the jurisdiction of the court in all matters arising under this Code." Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-311 (Supp. 1991). By filing her "Petition for Formal Probate of Will and Appointment of Personal Representative" (R. 5) with the Third Judicial District Court, Linda Anglesey submitted herself to the jurisdiction of the Utah courts. She is bound by the decisions of those courts.

B. The Order of the Probate Court is Consistent with the Decision of the Utah Court of Appeals.

The Utah Court of Appeals, pursuant to the exercise of its subject matter jurisdiction and personal jurisdiction, determined that Robert Lee Jones was a pretermitted heir. Under Utah law, a pretermitted heir is entitled to a "share of the estate equal in value to that which he would have received if the testator had died intestate" Utah Code Ann. § 75-2-302 (1978) (since amended). As discussed above, the term "estate" is defined by the Utah Uniform Probate Code as including all "property" of a decedent. Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-201(11) (Supp. 1991). "Property" includes both "real and personal property or any interest therein." Utah Code Ann. § 75-1-201(33).

Thus, as a pretermitted heir under Utah law, Robert Lee Jones was entitled to one-half of all of the personal and real property owned by the Decedent at the time of his death, including the property in California.

The decision of the Utah Court of Appeals was reached on the merits, without fraud, and was not appealed by Linda Anglesey to this Court. Having failed to raise the issue in the trial court that Robert Lee Jones was not entitled to one-half of the Decedent's real property located in California, she is now barred from raising that issue. See Barnard v. Attebury, 629 P.2d 892, 895 (Utah 1981).

C. Linda Anglesey is Estopped from Denying that Robert Lee Jones is a Pretermitted Heir.

When this action was tried before Judge Wilkinson on February 10, 1986, one of the issues was whether Robert Lee Jones was a pretermitted heir. Neither Linda Anglesey nor her lawyer claimed, at any time, that California law should provide the rule of decision on that issue. In her trial brief filed prior to the trial, Linda Anglesey, then Linda Cameron, argued that Robert Lee Jones was not a pretermitted heir under Utah law. (R. 64-68.) Robert Lee Jones also briefed the issue under Utah law. (R. 85-19.) All of the parties understood at the time of the trial that Herbert Lee Jones primary assets

consisted of real property located in the State of California.³ At no time did Linda Anglesey argue that California law applied in determining whether Robert Lee Jones was a pretermitted heir.

Robert Lee Jones tried that issue before Judge Wilkinson and appealed the issue to the Utah Court of Appeals. Based on the position taken by Linda Anglesey at the trial, he reasonably believed that the decision of the Court of Appeals would be determinative of the issue. It was neither fair nor equitable for Linda Anglesey to claim, in a separate proceeding commenced in a foreign jurisdiction, that the pretermitted heir issue should have been resolved under California law.

Her actions raise a judicial estoppel against her. According to this Court in Condas v. Condas, 618 P.2d 491 (Utah 1980), "[i]t is well settled that a party who has taken a position in prior litigation and has obtained relief on the basis of it cannot maintain the opposite position in another action." Id. at 496.⁴ This Court should hold that, having

³This is demonstrated by the "Summary of Account" filed by Linda Anglesey (R. 421) which shows that Herbert Lee Jones had only \$6,210.00 in the State of Utah when he died. This is in contrast to the sum of \$115,355.99, which the California court distributed to Linda Anglesey in the ancillary proceeding. (R. 402, Exhibit B.)

⁴The Utah Court of Appeals similarly stated in Occidental/Nebraska Federal Savings Bank v. Mehr, 791 P.2d 217 (Utah App. 1990):

(continued...)

litigated the question of Robert Lee Jones' status as a pretermitted heir under Utah law, Linda Anglesey is now estopped from taking the position that California law governs with respect to the Estate's real property in California.

II.

UNDER THE COMMON LAW RULE, ROBERT LEE JONES IS ENTITLED TO ONE-HALF OF THE DECEDENT'S ESTATE.

Linda Anglesey relies on a common law rule that questions relating to intestate succession to interests in land are to be determined by the law of the jurisdiction in which the real property is situated. An important exception to this rule is set forth in the Restatement (Second) of Conflicts of Law § 236 comment a. That comment provides in relevant part:

There may be other states which have an even greater interest [than the state in which the real property is situated] in this question, such as would probably be true of a state where the decedent and all of his heirs were domiciled. . . . [I]t is unlikely that any policy of the state of the situs would be seriously infringed if the distribution upon intestacy of interests in

⁴(...continued)

Generally in legal proceedings a party with knowledge of all the facts will not be allowed to take a position, pursue that position to fruition, and later, with no substantial change in circumstances, return to attack the validity of the prior position or the outcome flowing from it.

Id. at 220 (citation omitted).

local land were to be decided in accordance with the local law of another state.

In addition, the comment further states:

There will be situations in any event where the courts of the situs would look to the local law of some other state to determine questions involving intestate succession to local land. For example, although these courts would usually look to their own local law to determine what categories of persons will inherit upon intestacy, they might look to the local law of some other state to determine whether a given person belongs to one of these categories.

Restatement (Second) of Conflicts of Law, § 236, comment a.

In Estate of Duguesne, 29 Utah 2d 94, 505 P.2d 779 (1973), this Court stated that when the legitimacy of a potential heir is at issue, it would be illogical to determine the heir's legitimacy both under the law of the state in which the decedent owned real property and under the law of the state in which the decedent owned personal property. See Estate of Duguesne, 29 Utah 2d 94, 505 P.2d 779, 781 (1973). This Court refused to apply the law of the state in which the decedent's real property was located to determine whether his illegitimate daughter was entitled to a share of that real property. Once the daughter's status as an heir was determined, the situs state was required to recognize that status. Thus, in Duguesne this Court followed comment a of the Restatement, as discussed above.

In a recent case, the Supreme Court of Idaho addressed the issue of the validity of a California judgment that affected

real property in Idaho. Andre v. Morrow, 680 P.2d 1385 (Idaho 1984). The Idaho Supreme Court, citing approximately ten cases from various jurisdictions, stated that "a personal judgment ordering a conveyance of the property by a party is a valid exercise of a court's power." Id. at 1361. The Idaho Supreme court further stated that "a foreign court has the power to indirectly affect out-of-state property by means of a decree, based on personal jurisdiction over the parties, which determines the parties' personal rights or equities in that property." Id. at 1361 n.2 (emphasis in original).

In her brief to this court, Linda Anglesey cites In re Ray's Estate, 287 P.2d 692 (Wyo. 1955), in support of her position that the law of the situs state governs the disposition of real property located in that state. The facts of Ray's Estate are similar to those before this Court. The decedent in that case was a resident of Nevada at the time of his death. The decedent's Will was admitted to probate in California, Nevada, and Wyoming. The Will did not provide for the decedent's son. The District Court in Clark County, Nevada, held that the son was a pretermitted heir and under Nevada law was entitled to one-third of the decedent's property. Id. at 631. The Supreme Court of Nevada affirmed the district court's ruling. Id. at 632. In an ancillary proceeding before the District Court for the County of Laramie, Wyoming, the son asked

the court to approve the distribution to him of one-third of any of the decedent's real property in Wyoming. The court denied the son's request and excluded him from the distribution of the decedent's Wyoming property. Id. The son appealed the decision to the Wyoming Supreme Court.

This case has no application to the present case since, as discussed above, the Utah Uniform Probate Code specifically provides that Robert Lee Jones, as a pretermitted heir, is entitled to his intestate share of all of the Decedent's property, including real property.

Moreover, the Ray's Estate case does not hold that the issue of whether a child is pretermitted is to be determined by the law of the state in which the property is located. The Wyoming Supreme Court in Ray's Estate affirmed the lower court's ruling but it did so, not because the son was not pretermitted under Wyoming law, but because under Wyoming law a pretermitted child is not entitled to any share of the decedent's estate. The Wyoming Supreme Court thus implicitly recognized the Nevada court's finding that the son was a pretermitted child. The court, after recognizing him as such, then applied its own law in determining the portion of the Wyoming estate to which a pretermitted heir is entitled. As argued above, under Utah law the probate court has jurisdiction over all real property of a decedent, including real property located in other states. But

even if this Court follows the rule in Ray's Estate, it should hold that Robert Jones is entitled to the share to which he would be entitled as a pretermitted heir under California law. Applying the rule which Linda Anglesey claims to be controlling in this matter, a California court would be required to recognize the Utah court's determination that Robert Lee Jones is a pretermitted heir, but would then apply its own law as to what portion of the estate a pretermitted heir receives.

Under California law, a pretermitted heir receives, "a share in the estate equal in value to that which the child would have received if the testator had died intestate." Cal. (Prob.) Code § 6570 & 6572 (1992). A child's intestate share is "equally if all of same degree . . ." Cal. (Prob.) Code § 6402 (1992), which in this case is one half of the decedent's estate.

As discussed above, the Utah courts had both subject matter jurisdiction over the Estate of Herbert Lee Jones and personal jurisdiction over the parties. The status of Robert Lee Jones as a pretermitted heir was conclusively determined by the Utah Court of Appeals, and must be recognized by the courts in California. Linda Anglesey did not appeal the decision of the Utah Court of Appeals. Under California law, a pretermitted heir is entitled to his intestate share which in this case is one half of Decedent's estate. Such disposition is consistent

with the common law rule argued to be applicable in this case by Linda Anglesey.

III.

THE CALIFORNIA STATE COURT DECREE IS NOT
RES JUDICATA, IS NOT BINDING ON THE
PARTIES, AND IS NOT ENTITLED TO FULL
FAITH AND CREDIT BY THE UTAH COURTS.

The United States Supreme Court has stated that,
"[f]ull faith and credit thus generally requires every state to
give to a judgment at least the res judicata effect which the
judgment would be accorded in the State which rendered it."
Durfee v. Duke, 375 U.S. 106, 109 (1963). In a case originating
in Utah, the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals applied the rule
that, "'the doctrine of res judicata is that an existing final
judgment rendered upon the merits, without fraud or collusion,
by a court of competent jurisdiction, is conclusive of causes of
action and of facts or issues thereby litigated, as to the
parties and their privies, in all other actions. . . .'"
Braselton v. Clearfield State Bank, 606 F.2d 285, 287 (10th Cir.
1979) (citation omitted).

At the time the California court entered its Decrees,
the Utah Court of Appeals had not finally adjudicated the issue
of whether Robert Lee Jones was a pretermitted heir. Linda
Anglesey, in her Petition to the California court, not only
failed to disclose the fact that the decision of the Third
Judicial District Court was then on appeal to the Utah Court of

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